# **Minutes**

# RESIDENTS' AND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE



17 October 2017

Meeting held at Committee Room 3 - Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW

	Committee Members Present: Councillors Michael White (Chairman), Michael Markham (Vice-C Lynne Allen, Teji Barnes, Tony Burles, Patricia Jackson, Allan Ka Kelly and Kuldeep Lakhmana.	
	Apologies for Absence: Councillor Jas Dhot (Councillor Lynne Allen substituting) and Co Stead (Councillor Teji Barnes substituting).	uncillor Brian
	Officers and witnesses:  Val Beale ((Environmental Specialist, Planning Specialist Team).  Holland (Member of the Committee on the Medical Effects of Air  James Rodger (Head of Planning and Enforcement) and Khalid A  (Democratic Services Manager).	Pollution)
24.	TO CONFIRM THAT ALL ITEMS MARKED PART I WILL BE C IN PUBLIC AND THAT ANY ITEMS MARKED PART II WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE	
	It was confirmed that all items on the agenda would be considered. However a paper produced in relation to Item 5 - Major Review 2 Revision of the Air Quality Action Plan for the London Borough o considered in Part II.	.017/18 -
25.	MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 20 SEPTEMBER 2017	
	Agreed as an accurate record.	
26.	RESIDENTS' & ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE - MAJOR REVIEW 2017/18 - REVISION OF THE AIR QUALITY ACTION PLAN FOR THE LONDON BOROUGH OF HILLINGDON	Action By:
	The Committee was provided with additional papers to help in the review.	
	The National Institute for Health and Care Excellence (NICE) guidelines on "Air Quality: outdoor air quality and health" provided information of road traffic related air pollution and its links to ill health. The paper provided details on how to improve air quality and so prevent a range of health conditions and deaths.  Other documents provided to Members were	

## "Improving Air Quality in the City of London" which provided a practical guide for City businesses

- "What is a Low Emission Neighbourhood"
- "Clean Air for Schools" case studies of pilot projects, which Hillingdon was one of the three partners in the pilot.
- Mayor of London's Healthy Streets Initiative
- Selborne Road Air Quality Improvement Scheme

Dr Mike Holland, Member of the Committee on the Medical Effects of Air Pollution and the Council's Head of Planning and Enforcement attended the meeting to provide evidence to Members

#### **Background to the Clean Air Act**

The Committee was informed that the Clean Air Act 1956 was enacted in response to the "Great Smog" of London in 1952. The Act introduced a number of measures which aimed to reduce air pollution, especially by introducing "smoke control areas" in some towns and cities in which only smokeless fuels could be burned.

By shifting homes' sources of heat towards cleaner coals, electricity, and gas, this reduced the amount of smoke pollution and sulphur dioxide from household fires.

Members were informed that this legislation was an important milestone in the development of a legal framework to protect the environment.

Reference was made to the impact on health of poor air quality and to studies which had proved that exposure to poor air quality resulted in cancers, respiratory problems such as asthma.

Poor air quality had been described as the largest environmental risk to public health in the UK, known to have more severe effects on vulnerable groups, for example the elderly, children and people already suffering from poor health such as respiratory disease.

Reference was made to the development of the Air Quality Action Plan which would ensure that improvements to health were an important objective in terms of the outcomes of the actions to be included.

# 2004 Air Quality Action Plan

Dr Holland outlined to the Committee details of the 2004 Plan which was divided into the following areas:

Action By:

**Action By:** 

- Switching to cleaner transport modes
- The tackling of through traffic
- Promoting cleaner vehicle technology
- Measures specific to Heathrow Airport
- Measures concerning local businesses and industry
- Making improvements through the planning system
- Working with regional and central government

The Committee was informed that overall there had been improvements made to air quality as a result of the Action Plan. For example, all schools in the Borough now had travel plans; there had been an increase in the number of dedicated cycle and walking paths. New developments were required to produce air quality assessments and include mitigation to reduce their impact on pollution. Reference was made to "AirText" which was a free service which residents an people working in the Borough could sign up to, whereby users were alerted to when a pollution episode was predicted.

## **Highways and Road Network**

There had been focus on transport and traffic with mitigation measures detailed in the plan. Reference was made to the impact of Heathrow Airport and the Committee noted that Hillingdon had no direct control over the airport; however liaison should continue to ensure that Heathrow Airport considered the introduction of measures to improve air quality as a priority.

Members were informed that the Highways Agency did take into consideration Air Quality when undertaking highways and road works. Reference was made to the introduction of the M4 Smart Motorway and the air quality mitigation measures which had been requested.

Members were provided with pollution maps which indicated the same distribution of pollution as that for the original Action Plan in 2004. It was evident that the higher levels were found to the south of the Borough, with Heathrow airport an easily identifiable pollution hotspot.

Reference was made to the road network through the Borough such as the A40, the A312, M4, A4, Uxbridge Road, which majorly contributed to the pollution levels and congested high streets and road junctions added to the local levels of pollution. Discussion took place on the ranking of cars in relation to air quality and the higher emissions from diesel cars. Reference

**Action By:** 

was made to Clean Air Zones which restricted or charged certain classes of vehicles and tended to operate around schools.

## How the Planning System could improve Air Quality

The Head of Planning and Enforcement attended the meeting and presented details of what planning could do to in terms of improving air quality.

The Committee was informed that major developments could be asked to have a low emissions approach, which encompassed a more holistic approach to improving air quality/minimising exposure.

Achievement of the most would be a pre-application stage and could include:

- Setting back residential buildings from main roads;
- Siting play areas away from roads;
- Energy provision in developments to be low emissions
- Easy access to public transport;
- Adequate, appropriate and well located green space and infrastructure.

Examples were given of good practice: At stage 3 of the Stockley Park Development, "green walls" were constructed which helped soak up the air pollution. At St Helens School, which was a National Eco School, revolutionary eco measures had been included such as solar panels, green roofs, natural lighting and ventilation.

Possible planning conditions which could be added to approvals could be: that the content of Air Quality Reports were complied with, a Fleet Management Condition be added which stipulates the use of low emission vehicles, no idling etc, Green Travel Plans, Sustainability Condition and Clean Energy Conditions which could include the use of low emission boilers.

Reference was also made to the continued use of s106 funds which could be sought to fund local air quality monitoring in the location and support actions within the Air Quality Plan to make improvements in the local area.

The Committee asked that officers consider the development of a planning best practice guide for air quality. This could be an amendment to the current Air Quality Supplementary Planning Guidance.

Suggestions / other initiatives

Action By:

bers discussed the evidence given and asked whether	
it meant. This was raised in relation to wood burning took place throughout the Borough and caused hazards,	Val Beale
er work could take place with schools to consider "no "signs and the enforcement of "no idling". The	Bill Hickson
de of schools in term-time and in non term-time. This I help in raising awareness with parents of the pollution is outside individual schools. School air quality champions I be appointed and School Travel Plans could be updated	David Knowles
cularly on the Borough's footpaths and canal towpaths. ers were asked to consider the logistics of joint	David Knowles
ept of the action plan including the development of	Dr Mike Holland / Val Beale
OLVED -	
That the witnesses be thanked for the evidence submitted and the information be used as part of the review	
That officers be asked to provide the information outlined above, together with inviting relevant witness to the next meeting of the Committee.	
WARD PLAN	
d.	
RK PROGRAMME	
d.	
FING NOTE ON ROADSTONE COATING	
c present as the information under discussion contained dential or exempt information as defined by law in the I Government (Access to Information) Act 1985. This was	
	it meant. This was raised in relation to wood burning in took place throughout the Borough and caused hazards, in included air pollution.  The work could take place with schools to consider "no grain sand the enforcement of "no idling". The duction of "stop and drop" areas, close to schools.  The rence was made to making comparisons to the air quality de of schools in term-time and in non term-time. This is deep in raising awareness with parents of the pollution is outside individual schools. School air quality champions is be appointed and School Travel Plans could be updated able them to be effective in terms of reducing pollution; cussion took place around promoting greater cycling, cularly on the Borough's footpaths and canal towpaths. He were asked to consider the logistics of joint he action plan including the development of oke action plans for each Focus Area  OLVED —  That the witnesses be thanked for the evidence submitted and the information be used as part of the review  That officers be asked to provide the information outlined above, together with inviting relevant

business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information)' (paragraph 3 of the schedule to the Act).
Members were providing with a briefing paper on roadstone coating.
RESOLVED -
That the information provided be noted and officers be asked to provide further details as requested.
Meeting commenced at 5.30pm and closed at 7.00pm Next meeting: 21 November 2017 at 5.30pm

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the resolutions please contact Khalid Ahmed on 01895 250833. These minutes are circulated to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.